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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS, 

EASTERN DIVISION 

CABRINI-GREEN LOCAL ADVISORY COUNCIL, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

CHICAGO HOUSING AUTHORITY, et al., 

Defendants. 

DOROTHY GAUTREAUX, eta!. 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

CHICAGO HOUSING AUTHORITY, et al., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

No. 96 C 6949 

No. 66 C 1459 

Hon. Marvin E. Aspen 

PLAINTIFF' S THIRD MOTION TO COMPEL 
ENFORCEMENT OF THE CONSENT DECREE 

The Plaintiff, the Cabrini-Green Local Advisory Council ("LAC"), by and through its 

attorneys at the Legal Assistance Foundation, moves this Court for an order compelling 

enforcement of the Decree. The LAC seeks an order enforcing the provision of the Decree that 

requires the City to acquire the parcel of land formerly occupied by the Near North High School 

("NNHS") at Clybourn and Larrabee for housing redevelopment. In support of its motion, the 

LAC states as follows: 
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1. On August 30, 2000, this Court approved a Consent Decree previously signed by the 

parties. See Consent Decree, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

2. The Consent Decree is an agreed settlement of claims arising from the implementation of 

the Near North Redevelopment Initiative ("NNRI") and HOPE VI revitalization plans for 

the Cabrini-Green public housing development. 

3. Plaintiff, the Cabrini Green Local Advisory Council which represented and continues to 

represent public housing residents affected by the redevelopment plans, brought suit 

against the Defendants, the CHA and the City of Chicago, in part because the CHA's 

plans for Cabrini-Green would reduce the supply of affordable housing in the Near North 

area. 

4. The Consent Decree addresses this concern by providing that: 

[t]he City will acquire additional land and/or impose appropriate 
restrictions and requirements on land owned by other persons or 
entities to make it possible to maintain the commitment by it and by 
CHA to construct at least 700 public housing units and 270 
affordable rental units within the HOPE VI Planning Area .. . . 
Land acquired, in the process of being acquired, or otherwise 
anticipated to be subject to appropriate restrictions and requirements 
for mixed-income development to date is described in Appendices B 
and C to the consent decree. 

Exhibit A, section II.C. 

5. Appendix B, an enlarged copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, is a map of the 

proposed residential development. The map identifies different parcels of land by 

number. 

6. Appendix C, an enlarged copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C, identifies Parcel 

#11 , "NN High School Clybourn and Larrabee," as a "Future Development Site." Parcel 

#II corresponds to the numbering on the map at Exhibit B. 
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7. Appendix C identifies Parcel #11 as providing 382 dwelling units andll5 units of 

replacement public housing. The Parcel is projected to provide approximately 15% of all 

replacement housing-- and more than 16% of replacement public housing-- in the 

NNRI. 

8. On information and belief, the Near North High School Building, which is on Parcel # 11 , 

is used intermittently by the Chicago Police Department for training exercises and by 

Healy South Alternative School. 

9. Despite the Consent Decree signed in 2000, the LAC learned in February 2009 that 

Chicago Public Schools was on the verge of signing a contract to place the Chicago High 

School of the Arts in the Near North High School Building. 

I 0. Although the deal never materialized, neither the LAC nor the NNRI Working Group 1 

was invited to participate in discussions about the land that had been promised for 

housing development until the deal was in final negotiations. 

11. On or about March 11 , 2010, representatives from the LAC, the CHA, and the City of 

Chicago met with then-School Board Chief Executive Officer Ronald Huberman 

regarding Parcel# 11 , which encompassed the Near North High School. 

12. At that meeting, CEO Huberman directed· his staffto prepare for execution all necessary 

documents to allow for the transfer of the Parcel #11 to CHA. 

The Consent Decree provides for a Working Group to "provide ongoing overall direction 
for the NNRI," including preparing and issuing Requests for Proposals, selecting developers, and 
monitoring development activities . The Working Group includes representation from the LAC, 
the CHA, the City, counsel for the Gautreaux plaintiffs, and CHA's former Receiver, the Habitat 
Company. 
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13. Two years later, there is no evidence that any documents have been prepared or that the 

City has taken any steps to execute the transfer. 

14. Although redevelopment plans have moved forward on several other sites identified in 

the Consent Decree, there has been no movement in the 10 years since the agreement was 

signed to acquire and set aside Parcel #11, which includes the Near North High School 

Building. 

15. The failure of the City to secure Parcel # 11 adequately and/or impose appropriate 

restrictions on its use is a violation ofthe Consent Decree. 

16. On May 5, 2011, counsel for Plaintiff sent a Jetter to counsel for the City requesting 

information about what steps the City has taken to secure Parcel #11 for replacement 

housing and whether there were any discussions about using Parcel # 11 for some purpose 

besides replacement housing. See Letter from Wheelock to Mine of 5/5/11 , at 2, attached 

hereto as Exhibit D. 

17. Counsel for the City, Andrew Mine, did not respond to Exhibit D in writing; however, in 

a phone conversation on May 12, 2011 , Mine stated that the City was in fact involved in 

discussions regarding a mixed-use proposal for Parcel# 11 that would include some 

residential housing. He could provide no assurances that the proposal would be sufficient 

to provide for 382 residential units, including 115 units ofpublic housing, as required 

under the Consent Decree. 

18. Neither the CHA nor the Working Group has been invited to participate in these 

discussions. 
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19. With the change in City administration and the concomitant changes to the School Board 

effective June 1, 2011 , the LAC is deeply concerned that the pending proposal for Parcel 

#11 will be implemented in violation of the Consent Decree. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff prays that this Court: 

A. Enter an order against the City of Chicago compelling it to acquire and restrict use 

ofParcel # 11 for housing development for displaced Cabrini-Green residents, as provided for 

under the Consent Decree; 

B. Grant the Plaintiff such further relief as this Court deems just and proper. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Is/ Richard M. Wheelock 

Richard M. Wheelock 
Legal Assistance Foundation ofMetropolitan Chicago 
111 W. Jackson Blvd, Suite 300 
Chicago, IL 60604 
312-347-8389 
ARDC # 6186597 

R. Elizabeth Rosenthal 
Legal Assistance Foundation ofMetropolitan Chicago 
111 W. Jackson Blvd. Suite 300 
Chicago, IL 60604 
312-347-8368 
ARDC # 6287237 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Elizabeth Rosenthal, an attorney, hereby certify that on Friday, May 20, 2011 , I 
electronically filed the foregoing Third Motion to Compel Enforcement of the Consent Decree 
with the Clerk of the Court using the CM/ECF system that will send notification of such filings 
to all counsel of record . 

/s/ R. Elizabeth Rosenthal 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRJCT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 

CABRINI-GREEN LOCAL ADVISORY COUNCIL, ) 
) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

-vs- ) 
96 c 6949 

) Hon. David H. Coar 
CHICAGO HOUSING AUTHORJTY and ) 
TERRY PETERSON, CITY OF CHICAGO, and ) RicHARD M. DALEY, . . . . .. . . . . . . ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

CONSENT DECREE 

Plaintiff CABRINI-GREEN LOCAL ADVISORY COUNCIL (the "LAC"); TERRY' 

PETERSON and the CHICAGO HOUSING AUTHORITY (the "CHA" or "the CHA defendants"); 

and RICHARD M. DALEY and the CITY OF CHICAGO (the "City" or "the City defendams"); 

hereby agree to the entry of this consent decree in order to obtain a full and final settlement of all 

claims alleged in this case or that could have been alleged herein with respect to the design and 

implementation of the Near North .Redevelopment Initiative ("NNRl") and HOPE VI revitalization 

plans for Cabrini-Green, either by the LAC or by the residents ofCabrini-Green, who are members 

of and represented by the LAC. The NNR1 and HOPE VI revitalization plans for Cabrini-Green are 

· those plans des~ribed in CHA's H9PE VI revitalization plan, dated June 30, 1997. 

This decree has been reviewed and its entry has been consented to by Daniel E. Levin and 

The Habitat Company, in their capacity as Receiver ("Receiver") for the development of new non-

. elderly housing of CHA pursuant to the Order entered August 14, 1987 in Gautreaux v. CHA, 66 

C 1659 ("Re~eivership Order"); and by the plaintiffs in the Gautreaux case ("Gautreaux plaintiffs"). 

EXHI81TA 
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The LAC brought this case alleging that the NNRI, including CHA's HOPE VI plan, 

displaced Cabrini-Green residents and reduced the supply of affordable housing units at Cabrini, 

thereby resulting in a discriminatory impact upon African Americans, women and children. As such, 

the LAC asserted that the CHA defendants had violated the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) 

and (b); Title VI of the Civii .Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d; the HOPE VI Statute, 42 U.S:C. 

§14371, note (Pub. L. 102-389, Title II, Oct. 6, 1992); and 42 U.S.C. § 1437v(d)(2); the City's 

Co~~olidated Plan required under the HOPE vr Statute; the Uniform Relocation Act, 42 u.s.c .. § . 

4625(c)(l) and (3) and various implementing regulations; and previous Memoranda of Agreement 

the CHA executed with the LAC. Finally, the LAC asserted that the CHA defendants had excluded 

the residents of Cabrini-Green from the planning process that gave rise to the NNRI and 

consequently violated Sections 18 and 24 of the United States Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 

1437p(b)(l) and 1437v(d)(2); as well as their contractual obligations to the residents under a May 

28, 1993 Memorandum of Agreement between the LAC and CHA. 

The LAC further claimed that the City defendants' NNRI violated the Fair Housing Act, 42 

U.S.C. § 3604(a) and (b); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d; the Housing and 

Community Development Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 5304(b )(2), 5304(d)(2)(A)(i) and (iv), and 5309(a); and 

the Community Development Block Grant agreement between HUD and the City. 

Plaintiffs complaint and amended complaint sought declaratory and injunctive relief 

prohibiting the defendants from implementing the NNRI and CHA's HOPE VI plans. 

Since the initiation of the lawsuit, both the CHA defend~ts and the City d~fendants have 

denied that any Cabrini-Green resident would be displaced as a result ofthe NNRI and CHA's HOPE 

VI plans for the conununity. They h~ve not only denied any and all liability in the case, but insisted 
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that unless the NNRI and HOPE VI plans were implemented, all public housing would disappear 

from the Cabrini-Green neighborhood as a result of federal laws already adopted and the pace of 

development around Cabrini-Green. The CHA and the City defendants state that the NNRI and 

HOPE VI initiative at Cabrini-Green were designed to preserve public housing at Cabrini-Green; 

foster a mixed-income and integrated neighborhood; radically improve the schools, parks, police 

protection, and public facilities in the neighborhood; and spark economic development, including 

· . jobs for Cabrini-Green residents. The defendants deny that the LAC or Cabrini-Green residents were 

ever excluded from the plarming process at Cabrini-Green. 

After extensive discussion between the parties and counsel, including counsel for the 

Receiver and the Gautreaux plaintiffs, and a full review of the substantial record compiled in this 

case, the LAC has detennined it is in the best interests of the LAC and the Cabrini-Green residents 

it represents to settle this case on the terms set forth .herein, given the risks and uncertainties of 

further litigation. The LAC, elected by the residents of Cabrini-Green, enters into this consent 

decree as the representative of all families that now live at the Cabrini-Green development or have 

Jived there since January I, 1993. Members of the LAC include building presidents elected by the 

residents of each building in the Cabrini-Green development. Further, the officers of the LAC have 

been directly elected by the residents of Cabrini-Green in development-wide secret ballot voting. 

Since the armouncement of the NNRI in June 1996, the LAC has held various resident meetings to 

discuss the initiation and progress of this litigation and to solicit feedback from the residents of 

Cabrini-Green, including the residents who comprise the boards of the resident management 

corporations for 1230 N. Burling, the Green Homes, the Cabrini Rowhouses, and the Cabrini 
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Extension. Prior to execution of this consent decree, the LAC reviewed and approved this consent 

decree on August 9, 2000. 

The CHA and the City defendants continue to deny all of the claims asserted but consider 

it desirable to set1le this litigation on the conditions set forth below in order to avoid the risks, 

expense, and burden of protracted litigation. Indeed, by entry of this consent decree, the LAC; 'the 

CHA, and the City defendants seek to end their differences amicably and work together to make the 

. . . . .. . . . . . . 

NNRI and the HOPE VI initiative at Cabrini-Green a real success, both for Cabrini-Green's residents 

and the others who will live, work and invest in the neighborhood. 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT: 

I. THE WORKJNG GROUP AND RESIDENT PARTICIPATION IN THE NNRI 

A. A Working Group shall be formed to provide ongoing overall direction for the NNRI, 

for the purpose of monitoring and reviewing development activities in connection with the NNRI, 

including the preparation and issuance of requests for proposals C'RFPs") and other bids; changes 

in the design of the NNRJ; the selection of developers for City- or CHA-owned land as defined in 

Section -II.D below; the Jetting of development, construction and other contracts for City- or CHA-

owned land; the creation of jobs; any proposed development of privately owned land to include 

public housing units at a unit income mix other than the unit income mix specified in Section II.D 

below for City- or CHA- owned land; the provision of employment training for Cabrini-dreen 

residents; the status of construction activities; and the provision of social services. The following 

institutions will be represented on the Working Group: the -LAC, the CHA, the City, counsel for 

· Gautreaux plaintiffs, and the Rec~_iver. Under the Gautreaux Receivership Order, and other 

-4-

I 
I 
l 
! 
I 

i 
i 
i 

I 
i 
l 
I 
i 
! 

I 
I 
I 
! 

I 
I 

I 

r 
! 

I 
i 

r 
I 
! 
I 

f 

I 
! 



I ' 

•, 

Case: 1:66-cv-01459 Document#: 359-1 Filed: 05/20/11 Page 6 of 34 PageiD #:4145 

,, 
I . 

,, 

·' 

applicable law, CHA or its successor, the Receiver, and the City will have final decision-making 

authority in their respective areas of responsibility. A representative of the City shall chair the 

Working Group. A U.S. Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") staff member may attend 

Working Group meetings as a non-member observer. 

B. An evaluation panel, consisting of representatives of the LAC, CHA, the City, counsel 

for the Gautreaux plaintiffs, and Habitat, will serve to select the developer(s) to carry out the agreed-

upon activities with respect to the development of City- or CHA-owned, as defined in Section II.D 

below. No development manager will be designated. The City, or its designee, shall issue the RFPs, 

in conjunction with the Working Group. 

C. The Working Group will monitor the developer(s) to assure compliance with all 

requirements related to design and construction, training and employment of Cabrini-Green 

residents, and other matters identified in the RFP(s). 

D. Habitat, pursuant to its authority and duties under the Receivership Order, will review 

all development plans and proposals and monitor their implementation to ensure confonnance with 

Gautreaux requirements. Such review and monitoring shall include participating cooperatively, to 

the extent necessary for purposes of ensuring Gautreaux confonnance, through initial consultation 

and periodic consultation thereafter, in the formulation and implementation of appropriate 

specifications and parameters for development plans and proposals respecting public housing. 

E. Subject to HOPE VI requirements, the Receivership Order, and other applicable law, 

1. The Working Group shall meet on a regular basis in order to collectively make 

decisions regarding the NNRI. 
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2. The parties represented on the Working Group and the evaluation panels 

pledge good faith and best efforts to make each such decision by consensus. 

3. It is the intent of the parties represented on the Worlcing Group and the 

evaluation panels that no single party have more control than any other party in the group decision-

making processes. 

4. The CHA. the City, and Habitat, as Receiver for CHA's development of new, 

... non-elderly public housing; shall remain separately responsible for those duties imposed upon each 

of them respectively under the HOPE VI program and other public housing capital funding rules and 

regulations, orders of the Gautreaux court, and all federal, state, and local laws. 

F. Court Review 

I. If any member of the Working Group, as defined in this consent decree, 

objects to a decision made in Section l.E.4 above, with respect to a matter that is the· Receiver's 

responsibility or to a decision relating to the application or amendment of orders entered in the 

Gautreaux case, it may obtain review of the decision (including whether the decision is within the 

Receiver's area of responsibility or involves application or amendment of orders entered ,in the 

Gautreaux case), by motion filed with the Court in the Gautreaux case. The parties agree that 1he 

intervenor status granted to the LAC on November 24, 1998 in the Gautreaux case shall be extended 

to allow for the LAC's intervention with resp-ectto any ri10tion filed in the Gautreaux case pursuant 

to this sub-section. The parties agree to present to the court in the Gautreaux case an agreed order 

providing for such an extension. The parties agree that the City shall be granted intervenor status 

in the Gautreaux case to allow it to participate fully in any motion filed in the Gautreaux case 
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pursuant to this sub-section, arid the parties agree to present to the court in the Gautreaux case an 

agreed order providing for such intervention. 

2. If any party to this litigation objects to any other decision of the Working 

Group or its selection panels, it may obtain review of the decision by motion filed with the Court, 

3. In ruling upon such objections, the decision under review shall not be 

disturbed unless it is arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or contrary to law or thls consent 

decree. 

G. The CHA shall actively involve and include the LAC in the CHA's decision-making 

process respecting any proposed disposition of CHA property that is currently identified in whole 

or in part for replacement housing under the NNRl (as described in CHA's HOPE VI revitalii..ation 

plan, dated June 30, 1997) in confonnity with 24 C.F.R. Part 964. In addition, prior to any 

disposition, such property must first be offered to the LAC for purchase in confonnity with 24 

C.F.R. § 970.13. In any event, the CHA shall not dispose of any such property, except by a long-

tenn lease to a developer with a land use restriction that requires public housing units to be 

developed and operated pursuant to this consent decree for no less than a forty-year period, unless 

it receives in return replacement property within the HOPE VI PI aiming Area that will accommodilte 

the same number of units as planned for the property that is the subject of disposition. For pUrposes 

of this consent decree, the HOPE VI Planning Area is that geographical area bounded by Chicago 

Avenue on the south, Wells Street on the east, North Avenue on the north, and the Chicago River 

on the west. 
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H. Technical Assistance For The LAC 

1. The CHA agrees to provide the LAC $400,000 in funds, as originally 

budgeted in the May 1993 HOPE VI application and the June 1997 HOPE VI Revitalization Plan, 

for technical assistance (T A), including but not limited to architectural services, engineering 

services, real estate development consultation, and legal consultation. Said grant shall be redu~ed 

by no more than $206,850.18 (funds spent to date), as reflected in Appendix A, plus $9,221.50 in 

pre-litigation costs owed to the Legal Assistance Foundation of Metropolitan Chicago. 

2. In addition to the HOPE VI TA funds provided by the CHA, as described 

above, the CHA shall provide the LAC another $250,000 for teclmical assistance with respect to 

NNRI development matters. CHA further agrees that the LAC may use these monies to pay all of 

the LAC's costs (totaling $35,932.48 as of August 1, 2000) in this litigation. 

3. The CHA agrees to provide funding for all services rendered by the LAC's T A 

consultants within the above budgets. Any contracts entered into by the LAC for TA services shall 

be in accordance with all applicable HUD and CHA procurement regulations and policies. 

II. REPLACEMENT HOUSING 

A. The CHA agrees to provide funding for the development (pursuanrto 24 C.F.R. Part 

941) and operation (in the fonn ofHUD operating subsidies or comparable subsidies) of at leaSt 700 

public housing units (including the public housing units at Orchard Park, Old Town Square, 

Mohawk North, 535 W. North Avenue, and North Town Village) with rents set at 30% of the 

family's adjusted gross income, with no minimum income requirements (also referred to as "newly 

constructed public housing units"), t.o be sited in the HOPE VI PI(Ulfling Area. Each unit of public 
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housing developed pursuant to this consent decree shall be maintained and operated in accordance 

with this consent decree and all applicable public housing requirements for no less than 40 years. 

CHA funding for these uruts will come from existing HOPE VI and public housing development 

monies, internal subsidies generated by the development of CHA land, Tax Incremental -Financing 

("TJF") .proceeds (if available), possible future HOPE VI awards, or such other sources offund.ing 

as available. These units shall be in addition to any replacement units provided for under any plans 

for the revitalization oft11e Green Homes and the Cabrini Extension South. 

B. The City guarantees that 270 of the affordable units, as defined below in Section 

II.D.2, created duri.ng the course of the NNRJ will be rental units for families making less than 80% 

of area median income ("a.m.i.") to be located within the HOPE VI Plruming Area. 

C. The City will acquire additional hmd and/or impose appropriate restrictions and 

requirements on land owned by other persons or entities to make it possible to maintain the 

commitment by it and by CHA to construct at least 700 public housing units and 270 affordable 

rental units within the HOPE VI Plruming Area for which units current and displaced Cabrini-Green 

families shall have priority as set forth in Sections II.D.l, III.D. 4 and 5, and VI below.··. Land 

acquired, in the process of being acquired, or otherwise anticipated to be subject to appropriate 

restrictions ru1d requirements for mixed-income development to date is described in Appendices B 

and C to the consent decree. 

D. Income Mix: The income mix for all housing developed pursuant to this consent 

decree on City- or CHA-owned land shall be as follows: 50% market rate, 20% affordable (as 

defined below), and 30% public housing. City- or CHA-owned land shall be defined as land that 

the CHA, City, or any other local mu~icipal entitY owns or acquired and/or contributed for ~urposes 
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of development under this consent decree, including the land identrtiecl as such in Appendices Band 

C to the consent decree. RFPs issued with respect to SI.\Ch development, as described below in 

Section III, shall include these income mix percentages. Other land developed in the HOPE Vl 

Planning Area on land that is not City- or CHA-owned may have other respective percentages of 

market rate, affordable, and/or public housing contributing to the overall goal of a mixed-incOme 

community. 

1. Public Housing Units: Subject to any applicable statutory or regulatory 

requirements concerning persons with disabilities and seniors, one-half of the 700 public housing- , 

units shall be reserved for families that have at least one household member working 3.0 hours per 

week, including work through Eamfare, Work First, or any REDI program where the household 

~ember is paid wages for his or her work. Notwithstanding the above, any displaced Cabrini family 

(as defined in Section VI.B below) shall be eligible for the new public housing units even if they 

are not employed. The remaining one half of these units shall have no work requirement. 

2. Affordable Units: Affordable units may be: (a) affordable rental units (defined 

as affordable to families earning no more than 80% of a.m.i.), or (b) affordable for-sale units 

(defined as affordable to families earning no more than 120% ofa.m.i.). Proposals that contain a 

component of affordable rental units will be specifically encouraged. 

E. Density: The net densities on the City- or CHA-owned land shall not exceed 49 units 

per acre, unless otherwise agreed to by all members of the Working Group. 
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lit REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS REQUIREMENTS 

A. CHA Land 

1. The City, or its designee, shall issue a request(s) for proposals for Parcels 1, 

3, and 9, as described in Appendices Band C. This RFP (the "CHA RFP") will require that (a) the 

LAC (or its affiliated development entity) be a partner, or other fonn of owner, with up to 50% 

interest in the -ownership of the partnership (or other entity) chosen to be the developer.ofhousing 

- thereunder; and (b) that the LAC (or its affiiiated development entity) participate in (i) the receipt 

of developers' fees and profits (provided the LAC uses such fees and profits for not-for-profit 

purposes to benefit current and displaced Cabrini-Green residents, as further described in 

subparagraph (6) below), (ii) the selection of property managers and constmction contractors, (iii) 

the planning of the development, and (i v) the development of resident and other programs. 

2. The proposed extent and limitations of the LAC's participation shall be 

specifically articulated in any response to the CHA RFP and, once a developer is selected, shall be 

set forth in the "Rights and Responsibilities" section of the partnership (or other joint ownership) 

agreement between the developer and the LAC. 

3. TheLAC shall have the maximwn opportunity for input into the selection of 

such developers as permitted by HUD regulations and any other applicable law. 

4. One of the criteria for ranking the proposals in response to the RFP(s) shall 

be respondents' proposed process and programmatic strategies for achieving meaningful 

participation by residents and stakeholders of the redeveloped community in the decision-making 

and ongoing bperations of the development. 
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5. If, once the developer has been selected, the LAC has been granted an 

ownership interest in the development entity, the LAC shall have no further role in the Working 

Group's oversight and monitoring of the redevelopment activities for that jointly developed site. 

6. The LAC shall have sole decision-making responsibility with respect to the 

use of any fees or residuals it may earn by virtue of its role in the joint partnership; however,·said 

.fees and residuals may only be used for not-for.profit purposes that benefit displaced and current 

Cabrini~dreen residents: The LAC may establish for f~ilies residing in the affordable rental units 

a hardship fund from the LAC's development monies which will provide temporary financial 

assistance for families unable to meet their housing costs due to loss of income. 

B. RFP for City Land: RFPs for City land will indicate that an ownership partnership 

participation for the LAC is encouraged, and that such participation may satisfy the resident and 

conununity participation portion of the RFP. 

C. Development and Other Contracts: The CHA, the City, and the LAC may not enter 

into development and other contracts with third parties that contain provisions that conflict with this 

consent decree. 

D. · RFP Provisions for Affordable Units: 

I. Proposals must demonstrate that the affordable units will remain affordable 

well into the future. Proposals that identify a workable and specific long-term strategy to maintain 

affordability for both rental and for-sale units will be specifically encouraged. The City will ensure 

that developers using Low-Income Housing Tax Credits will maintain affordable rents for a period 

of forty years. 
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' . 
. , 

2. Responses that feature affordable units distributed among and affordable to 

the widest range of income levels will be specifically encouraged. The affordable units financed by 

Low-Income Housing Tax Credits will maximize affordability for low-income residents, consistent 

with the financial viability of the development and with the availability and equitable allocation of 

subsidies and other resources. No minimum income eligibility requirements shall be applied to 

Section 8 voucher holders with respect to the affordable rental units. 

3. . . To tile extent that there are hoineownership opporni.illties within the affordable 

for-sale component of the development, and consistent with the financial viability of the 

development and with the availability and equitable allocation of subsidies and other resources, the 

developer shall make some portion of these affordable for-sale units available to families making 

60% of a.m.i. or less. 

4. Subject to any applicaple legal requirements concerning disability or age, all 

affordable rental units (incl1.1ding without limitation affordable rental units in North Town Village) 

shall be reserved for families with an employed member (defined as families that have at least one 

household member working 30 hours per week, including work through Earn fare, Work First,'·or any 

REDI program where the household member is paid wages for his or her work). 

5. Subject to and consistent with other applicable requirements (including 26 

U.S.C. § 42(h)(6)(B)(iv)), current and displaced Cabrini-Green residents who are employed (as 

defined in Section III.D.4 above) and who otherwise qualify shall have first priority for the 

affordable units (including without limitation rental units in North Town Village). If and to the 

extent 24 C.F.R. § 92.253(d)(4) shall be interpreted to apply to the selection of applicants, the 

.priority described herein fo~ the affordable units sh~ll govern. 
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IV. . DEMOLITION 

A. The LAC agrees to the demolition of the remaining six buildin·gs that comprise the 

Cabrini Extension North, including 1158 N. Cleveland, 1150-1160 N. Sedgwick, 1159-1161 N. 

Larrabee, 1015-1017 N. Larrabee, 1121 N. Larrabee, and 500-502 W. Oak. 

B. The demolition of the Cabrini Extension North buildings shall occur in two pha~es. 

In Phase i, 1158 N. Cleveland, 1150-1160 N. Sedgwick, and 500-502 W. Oak ~hall be demolished 

once this consent decree becomes effective and HUD has indicated in writing that it approves of the 

changes in the CHA's HOPE VI revitalization plan required by the terms of this consent decree. No 

further demolition shall occur until the following conditions are met, unless otherwise waived by 

both the LAC and the CHA: 

..... 

1. Construction of initial units has commenced on that CHA land currently 
referred to as Cabrini Extension North. "Construction" shall be defined as 
the execution of a binding construction contract for initial units on the CHA 
land described herein, issuance of a notice to proceed, and the 
commencement of some bn-site construction activity in accordance with and 
pursuant to said notice, other than demolition or site clearance, such as the 
installation of utility feeds or commencement of work on foundations. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

CHA has earmarked funds sufficient for the development of at lea:~~ 700 
public housing units in the HOPE VI Planning Area; 

J - ;_ 

Sites have been acquired, identified for acquisition through eminent domain 
proceedings as permitted by the NNRl TIF Plan, or other provisions have 
been made to ensure the agreed-upon 700 public housing units will be 
constructed; and 

A relocation plan, which plan shall be prepared expeditiously, has been 
prepared in a manner consistent with this consent decree and applicable law. 
CHA and the LAC will make good faith efforts to create a mutually 
acceptable relocation plan. 
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Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the Court may order demolition of the remaining CHA 

buildings on other terms upon a shov-.ring of good cause, it being understood that such good cause 

shall consist of more than the general blight and negative effect on the market that the subject CHA 

buildings are presently known or anticipated to have or the CHA 's failure to comply with its 

obligations under this consent decree, as described in Section IV.C below, to properly secure and 

maintain the remaining CHA buildings. 

·· · C. · Un~il the conditions described in Section IV;B above have been satisfied, the CHA 

shall maintain the occupied apartments and common areas of the buildings at 1159-1 161 N. 

Larrabee, 1015-1017 N. Larrabee and 1121 N. Larrabee ("the Larrabee buildings") in decent, safe 

and habitable condition and shall make best efforts to properly secure, through boarding-up and other 

appropriate measures, unoccupied apartments and common areas no longer in use. Such best efforts 

shall include monthly inspections. Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this consent decree, 

the LAC and the CHA shall conduct a survey of the units and common areas in these buildings to 

identify any building code violations, and shall then agree upon a reasonable timetable, not to exceed 

one (1) year, within which to repair these violations. If it is dangerous or cost-prohibitive tq keep 

these buildings occupied, CHA may vacate these buildings or consolidate residents within the 

buildings, but only after good-faith negotiation with the LAC. If a joint CHA-LAC decision cannot 

be reached, the mat1er will be resolved by the Court. CHA shall take no action to vacate or 

consolidate residents in these buildings until it has reached agreement with the LAC or obtained 

Court permission to do so. 
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V. RELOCATION 

A. Families relocated from the buildings at Cabrini-Extension North ("displaced 

families" as defined in Section VI.B below) shall be given the following relocation options: l) 

within the HOPE VI Plan.rUng Area, a rehabilitated unit in the Cabrini-Green development that 

complies with HUD's Housing Quality Standards and applicable building code requirements;· 2) 

within the HOPE VI Planning Area, a newly constructed public housing unit or affordable unit 

const~cted under Secti~ns II and Ill; 3) a Section 8. voucher t~gether with mobility assistance; or 

4) a scattered site unit to the extent such a unit is not claimed by a Homer family pursuant to the 

consent decree entered in Henry Homer Mothers Guild. et al. v. Chicago Housing Authority. et al.. 

9.1 C 3316 and previous orders entered in Gautreaux. Relocation options (2) and ( 4) shall be 

considered permanent relocation choices. Relocation options (I) and (3) shall be considered 

temporary relocation choices until such time as the family has been offered and refused a suitable 

public housing unit under option (2). All relocation efforts (whether temporary or permanent) shall 

be completed in confonnity with the Uniform Relocation Act and applicable HUD HOPE VI 

Relocation Guidelines. A family's housing choice shall be honored to the extent that the family 

qualifies for such a unit and to the extent that its first choice is available. Where two or more 

similarly-situated families seek the same unit, CHA, in cooperation with the private developer, shall 

conduct a lottery to detennine which family will receive that unit. With families who choose Section 

8 as their relocation choice, the CHA's obligations under this Section shall continue for forty-two 

months from the date of relocation or until such time that as the family has moved into a permanent 

housing choice, whichever is sooner, except that CHA shall provide moving services, including 

'transportation of belongings, pa~king materials, and reimbursements for utility hook-ups, for 
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families moving back into newly constructed public housing units or affordable units regardless of 

whether more than forty-two months have passed from the date of relocation. 

B. CHA must maintain no less than y_early regular written contact with temporarily 

relocated families and ·create a con1puter database for these families, including their former and 

current address, household size, source and amount of income, and names and ages of fam'ily 

members. CHA must provide to the LAC monthly access to its updated database for relocated 

families. 

VI. PRIORITIES FOR NEWLY CONSTRUCTED PUBLIC HOUSING AND 
AFFORDABLE UNITS 

A. Families displaced from the Cabrini Extension North buildings (1015-1017 N. 

Larrabee, 1121 N. Larrabee, 1159-1161 N. Larrabee, 500-502 W. Oak, 1117-1119 N. Cleveland, 

1157-1159 N. Cleveland, 1150-1160 N~ Sedgwick, and 1158 N. Cleveland) shall have the right and 

first priority, as provided for in this Section and in Sections II .D.l, Ill.D. 4 and 5, to move into the 

newly constructed public housing and affordable housing units to be constructed under Sect.ions [I 
\ 

and Ill of this consent decree. 

B. Displaced families shall be defined as all families who resided in the Cabrini 

Extension North buildings on or after January 1, 1993, except for leaseholders: 

1. who were evicted from the Cabrini Extension North buildings pursuant to 
court order, prior to their relocation to· the new units developed; 

2. who abandoned or voluntarily left their units. "Units" here means a cl-iA 
unit, a subsidized unit within the HOPE VI Planning Area, or a temporary 
Section 8 certificate or voucher unit; 

3. who were rel9cated to a scattered site unit; 
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4. whoprior to relocation to a newly developed Unit, but after relocation to a 
subsidized wtit withln the HOPE VI Planning Area or a temporary Section 
8 placement or after entry of the consent decree (in the case of families 
residing in a CHA unit): 

a. 

b. 

were convicted of any criminal activity that threatened the health, 
safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other 
residents, or any drug-related criminal activity on or off the premises; 
or 

had a household member, guest, or visitor while under the · 
leaseholder's control, convicted of any criminal activity that 

· threat~ned the health, safety or right to peacefui enjoyment of the 
premises by other residents, or any drug-related criminal activity on 
or off the premises. This exclusion shall not apply where the 
leaseholder agrees to exclude the offending person from the 
household. 

C. The CHA and the LAC shall jointly prepare a list of all displaced families, as defined 

in Section VI. B above. In preparing this list, the LAC and the CHA shall identify those families 

living in buildings·listed in Section VI.A above, after January 1, 1993, using CHA occupancy data · 

from January of 1993 (or as soon thereafter as possible) and each year thereafter, as available. The 

CHA and the LAC will then determine those families that remain eligible for replacement housing 

by, among·other methods, identifying those families from the buildings listed in Section VI.A who 

are listed on current CHA occupancy lists, on CHAC's current list of Section 8 certificate/voucher 

holders, and in data CHA and CHAC maintains on those families relocated from 1150-1160 N. 

Sedgwick, 1158 N. Cleveland, 500-502 W. Oak, 1015-1017 N. Larrabee, 1121 N. Larrabee, and 

1159-1161 N. Larrabee. Except as desc.ribed herein, CHA shall not be required to secure other 

information to identify families who have left CHA housing between January 1, 1993 and the date 

the consent decree is entered. However, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to prevent the 

LAC itself from securing additional information in order to identify eligible families. To the extent 
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the LAC seeks to establish that a family did not abandon or voluntarily leave the tmit under Section 

VI.B .. 2, the LAC shall bear the burden of proving thls fact. This list of displaced families shall 

contain the following infonnation regarding the displaced families: former and curreht addresses, 

household size, source and amount of income, and names and ages of famHy members. The parties 

agree to meet on a regular basis to update the list. The CHA and the LAC agree to keep the 

information ori the list confidential. 

D. The CHA or it l)ominee. shall notify the LAC and its counsel in writing whether the 

leaseholders on the list satisfy the eligibility criteria for displaced families, as defined above. If the 

CHA determines that the criteria are not met, CHA shall provide the LAC and its counsel with all 

appropriate documentation supporting its determination. 

E. Effective with the date of this consent decree, the CHA or its management agent shall 

provide the LAC and its counsel names and addresses of all leaseholders now residing in Cabrini 

Extension North buildings who have been served with notices of termination of tenancy for any 

reason other than nonpayment of rent. Said information shall be provided to the LAC and its counsel 

on a monthly basis. In addition to this information, the LAC and its counsel shall have, subj~ct to 
' 

written authorization from the leaseholders, access to all Chicago Police Department and CHA 

security arrest or incident reports utilized by CHA th~t provide a basis for the Tennination of 

Tenancy Notice, as well as criminal history information showing convictions (but not arrests). 

F. In the event the LAC believes that eviction action should or should not be taken 

against a particular leaseholder, the LAC shall set forth the basis for its beliefin a letter to the CHA 

within ten (1 0) days of its receipt of the leaseholder's name and address, or within a reasonable 

.Period of time in cases involving CHA's failure to take action against a particular tenant. CHA or 
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,' 

its management agent agrees to meet with the LAC to discuss the matter within ten (10) days of 

receipt of the LAC's letter. Should a representative of the LAC fail to attend the scheduled meeting, 

the LAC will have waived its right to a meeting in connection with that letter. Notice of the meeting 

shall be sent in writing to the LAC at lease three (3) days prior to the meeting. If the CHA or its 

management agent decides to initiate or not to initiate action against the family after meeting with 

the LAC, its shall set forth the reasons for its decision in a letter to the LAC within ten (1 0) days of 

the meeting. The CHA or its management agent, however, reserves the right to make the final 

decision to pursue or not to pursue an eviction action. 

G. Where a family satisfies the eligibility criteria fo~ replacement public housing but the 

CHA wishes to defer providing such public housing to the resident due to poor housekeeping, the 

pendency of a criminal case involving disqualifying felonies or misdemeanors, rent arrears, inability 

to establish utility service, or other good cause, the CHA shall notify the LAC and its counsel in 

writing and shall provide all appropriate documentation supporting the request for deferral. 

H. If the parties are unable to reach agreement regarding eligibility or deferrals, they 

shall jointly petition the Court for resolution of the matter, and the CHA shall direct the private 

developer to preserve a like-size, newly developed public housing unit for the family until the Court 

rules, .with no interruption of funds paid to the developer as a result of such unit being unoccupied 

during the pendency of such eligibility dispute. In all other cases, the CHA shall be free to process 

the displaced families and provide them replacement public housing pursuant to the terms of this 

consent decree. 

l. The CHA, the private developers, and the LAC shall jointly conduct a lottery of all 

displaced families by bedroom size_ to create a priority-housing list from which families will be 
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' l 1 ~ 0 I 

selected for the newly constructed public housing and affordable housing units. Under this 

paragraph, first priority shall be given to families displaced from 11 I 7-I 1 I 9 N. Cleveland, 1157-

1159 N. Cleveland, 1150-1160 N. Sedgwick and 1158 N. Cleveland; second priority shall be given I 
! 

to families from 500-502 W. Oak; and third priority to families displaced from 1015-1017 N. 

Larrabee, 1121 N. Larrabee, and 1159-1161 N. Larrabee. 

I 

I 

1. Current Cabrini-Green families (defined as Cabrini-Green . families that are not I 
"displaced families" and that reside in Cabrini-Green as of the date of entry of this consent de~ree) 

. I 

I 
shall have the right after displaced families to move into the newly constructed public housing and 

affordable units constructed under this consent decree, except for leaseholders who are disqualified I 
for any of the reasons set forth in Section VI.B above. Of these non-displaced families, first priority 

will go to Cabrini Extension families , and second priority will go to families from the balance of r 
Cabrini. Third priority, but only for .the newly constructed public housing units, will go to families 

residing in other CHA developments, and fourth priority, but only for the newly constructed public 

housing units, will be for those on CHA's general waiting list. 

K. The CHA shall contact in writing all current Cabrini-Green leaseholders, a~king 

whether they wish to be included in a lottery for replacement public housing and affordable units. 

The CHA and the LAC shall jointly conduct a lottery of all leaseholders who answered in the 

I 

f 
r 

affinnative to create a second priority-housing list for the newly constructed public housing and 

affordable units. If the parties cannot reach agreement regarding eligibility or deferral of a 

leaseholder, the parties shall follow the same procedures described in Section Vl.G·and VLH above 

for the selection of displaced families . 
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L. The priorities described in this Section deal solely with priority of occupancy among 

eligible public housing families, and do not govern the phasing of demolition or development, or the 

phasing of occupancy of market rate units. 

M. The City agrees that displaced Cabrini-Green families, as defined in Section VI.B 

above, who are otherwise eligible, shall have first preference for 30% of the ~ts in all future SRO 

and senior developments built within the Tax Incremental Financing district created as part of the . 

NNRI. Other Cabrini-Green families, who are otherwise eligible, shall have second preference. 

· These units shall be allocated to families according to the procedures set forth in Sections VI:J .and 

VI.J above . 

. VII. JOB TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

A. All RFPs issued for City- and CHA-owned land shall provide that proposals must 

feature a conununity-based hiring and training plan which concretely and comprehensively describes 

measur~s to ensure maximum reasonable opportunities for both (1) immediate employment and (2) 

longer-term job-training for residents of the Near North TIF District, with particular attention to the 

needs of those residents who have previously experienced inadequate employment opportunities and . 

development of job-related skills, including residents of public and other subsidized housing and 

people with disabilities. Respondents shall be strongly encouraged to propose creative measures 

toward the goal of increasing employment and training opportunities for the area residents described 

above. Proposals that set forth a community-based hiring and training plan that is detailed, is well 

thought out, and provides for a broad mix of strategies for maximizing employment and training 
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VIII. COMMUNITY AND SUPPORTIVE S:ltRVICES 

A. HOPE VI funds allocated for community and supportive services, such as the Tenant 

Patrol Program, the Victim Assistance program, tenant-owned businesses generated by these funds, 

and other such programs, shall be spent to benefit Cabrini-Green Extension residents only. These 

funds shall be used to employ whenever possible Cabrini-Green residents who are qualified for.jobs 

generated by the social services and community service program. At a minimwn, the expenditure 

of these HOPE VI funds shall be subject to the employment and training requirements of Section 

3 (12 U.S.C. § 1701 v) and implementing Tegulations and its applicable hiring goals for public 

housing residents. 

B. Using an instrument developed in conjunction with the Working Group, the LAC 

shall survey displaced and current Cabrini-Oreen residents. Based on the result of the survey, the 

LAC shall determine the scope of additional community and supportive Services. The LAC will 

then identify and prepare a scope and budget for the activities it intends to perform on behalf of 

Cabrini-Green residents. The LAC shall administer or contract out all Community and Supportive 

services. Funds for such services will come from the Community and Supportive Services portion 

of the HOPE VI budget or the project budget for development on CHA land. 

C. Cabrini Textiles shall be operated for the benefit of all Cabrini-Green residents. Any 

funds generated by this enterprise, in excess of those required for the operation of the business, shall 

be reinvested in the Cabrini-Green community as decided by the LAC. 

IX. Tax Incrementai Financing District: The City has designated the area covered by the NNRl 

a TIF district. The City shall coinmit TIF dollars to the extent and in the manner provided for in and 
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opportunities for community residents Will be strongly encouraged. Such a community-based hiring 

·and training plan shall comply with other applicable federal, state, and local laws. 

B. The CHA and the City shall insure that all RFPs and contracts issued for CHA 

property or any other property developed under the NNRI in connection with the expenditure of 

HUDfunds, including HOPE VI and public housing development funds, shall comply with Sect~on 

3 (12 U.S.C. § 1701 li and implementing regulations)" and the policies set forth fn CHA's "Technical 

·Assistance Section 3 for Contractors and Chicago Housing Authority ·Staff;" if and to the extent 

applicable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this paragraph shall not expand in any way the 

obligations imposed on CHA under Section 3: 

C. The CHA and the City shall insure that all RFPs and contracts issued for CHA 

property or any other property developed under the NNRI shall contain language consistent with 

Minority and Women Busin.ess Enterprise goals established by HUD, CHA , and City policy, as 

applicable. 

D. The CHA and the City shall make reasonable efforts to provide employment 

opportunities to every displaced family so that the family may qualify for the affordable rental units 

which have been reserved for working families. 

· E. TI1e City will hire, from a short list of five qualified candidates whose resumes have 

been provided to it by the LAC, an individual who will serve the function of a "resident employment 

specialist" who will work under the auspices of the City's CARE Center, but be assigned to the LAC, 

to implement the local employment and job-training aspects of the NNRI and to facilitate the 

employment prospects ofCabrini-Green residents. The re.sident employmenfspecialist shall work 

out of the LAC office. 
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. ' . 
' I• 

XII. Except as provided in Section I.F above, the Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter 

for the purpose of enabling any party to the litigation to apply to the Court for such further orders 

as may be necessary or appropriate for the construction, implementation, or enforcement of this 

consent decree. 

XIV. Whenever notice is required to be provided to the LAC under this consent decree, said notice 

shall also be provided to its counsel. 

XV. It is understood and agreed that all understandings and agreements previously reached 

between the parties hereto regarding the NNRI and the HOPE VI revitalization plans for Cabriru-

Green are merged in this consent decree, which alone fully and completely expresses their 

agreement. 

XVI. Each party shall bear its own attorneys' fees and costs. 
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. ·consistent with goals and objectives of the TIF redeveiQpment plan, to address, among other 

redevelopment projects and undertakings, the following: (l) infrastructure needs within the TIF 

district (e.g., streets, sidewalks, and sewers), including the remaining portions ofCabrini-Extension 

South, Green Homes, and the Cabrini Rowhouses; (2) employment training for low-income residents 

with.in the TIF district, including but not limited to Cabrini-Green residents; (3) various other public 

works and improvements (including taxing districts' capital costs accepted by the City as necessary 

for implementation of the redevelopment plan); ( 4) rehabilitation of properties, including without 

limitation, any remaining Cabrini-Green buildings, and the development of new public housing units 

in the HOPE VI Planning Area, to the extent of eligible redevelopment project costs, within the 

context of mixed-income redevelopment projects. 

X. The CHA and the City defendants, upon the LAC's written request and without cost, shall 

provide to the LAC or make available to the LAC for copying all documents and other written 

materials relating to the implementation of this consent decree, other than privileged documents. 

XI. This consent decree shall not be effective, unless it is approved both by this Court and by the 

Gautreaux Court and a Gautreaux Revitalizing Order has been entered. Furthermore, upon motion 

of either the LAC, the City, or the CHA, this consent decree may be vacated in the event that HUD 

disapproves in writing in whole or in part the changes in the CHA's HOPE VI revitalization plan 

required under the terms of this consent decree. 
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XU. Except as provided ln Section l.F above, the Court shall retajn jurisdiction over this matter 

for the purpose of enabling any party to the litigation to apply to the Court for such further orders 

as may be necessary or appropriate for the construction, implementation, or enforcement of this . 

consent decree. 

XIII. The parties agree to submit an agreed order reassigning the case to Judge Marvin E. Aspen 

pursuant to Rules 2.30(D) and 2.31 as a case related to Gautreaux v. CHA, 66 C 1459. 

XIV. Whenever notice is required to be provided to the LAC under this consent decree, said notice 

shall also be provided to its counsel. 

XV. It is understood and agreed that all understandings and agreements previously reached 

between the parties hereto regarding the NNRJ and the HOPE VI revitalization plans for Cabrini-

Green are merged in this consent decree, which alone fully and completely expresses their 

agreement. 

XVI. Each party shall bear its own attorneys' fees and costs. 
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ENTE 

David H. Coar 
'/\UG 3 (} ZOQ.-=.O _____ un_.ited States District Judge 

Date: _____ _ 

Approved: 

Marvin E. Aspen 
United States District Judge 

Date: ------
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Richard M. Wheelock 

·Legal Assistance Foundation of Metropolitan 
Chicago 
1 1 I W. Jackson, 3'd floor 
Chicago, IL 60604 

Robert D. Whitfield 
Attorney at Law 

.... l 0 S. LaSalle Street, Suite .1 301 . 
Chicago, IL 60603 

Counsel for Plaintiff 

Date: ~b.) £~~x::: 
I 

M~ 
Corporation Counsel 
City of Chicago 
Room 500, City Hall 
121 N. LaSalle Street 
Chicago, IL 6060 l 

By: AndrewS. Mine 
Senior Counsel 

Counsel for City Defendants 

Date: 8/2.2 .for? 
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General Coun$el 
Chicago Housing Authority 
200. W. Adams St., Suite 2100 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Thomas E. Jolmson 
Johnson, Jones, Snelling, Gilbert & Davis 

.36S. Waba~hA.v~n.ue, Suite 1310 
Chicago,JL 60603 

Counsel for CHA Defendants 

Date: t -0- ~ ~ <:J'\:J_ 
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United States District Judge 
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Chicago Housing Authority 
Cabrini-Green LAC Technical Assistance 

HOPE VI Expenditures Detail Thru July 31, 2000 

Vendor Name YTD Expenditures 

Barclay & Dixon $7,925.00 

Stanley L. Hill & Associates 15,985.00 

Carol Steele 40,192.03 

Cheryl Russom 50,383.00 

Urban Women, Inc. 12,580.00 

Distinguished Tours (St. Louis) 1,430.00 

Travel (St. Louis) 4,095.00 

Atlas Control 431.36 

Bauer Latoza Studio 29,803.70 

Technical Assistance Corp. for Housing 21,280.09 

Legal Assistance Foundation 22,745.00 

Total Expenditures $206,8~0.18 
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LEGAL ASSISTANCE FOUNDATION 
OF METROPOLITAN CHICAGO 

ll1 West Jackson Boulevard 
Suite 300 

-----------------------------1 Chicago, lllinois 60604-4136 

Diana C. White 
£uroti''t .pir«tor 

Alan Alop 
Jack L Block 
IKputy DiTPrton 

Service Offices 
Client Screening Unit 
Tel.n (312) 341·1070 

LDOP SERVICE OFFICE 
Ill W<>t Jacl«on Blvd. 
Chlc.~go, lL 60604 
fAX: (312) 311-1041 

NORTll SUBURBA.'I SERVICE OffiCE 
828 Davis SaeeL Rm. 201 
Evanston, lL 60201--1489 
FM<: (847) 475·3033 

. NORTliWEST SERVICE OFFlCS 
1279 N. Milwaul:ee /we., #-107 
Cltlcago, IL 60622-9388 
PM<: (773) 572-3201 

SOIJTH SUBURBAN SERVICE OffiCE 
900 E.ul 16Znd Saeet, Suite 101 
South Holl!nd, IL 60473·24n 
FAX: (708) 596-4108 

Special Project& 

Bankruptcy ProJect 
Chicago Senior> Yrojee1 
ChUd,.n's Law 
Consumer Law 
Crime Vlctlm.s A)si.sla.Ilte 
Disability Law 
Employmtnt Law 
Famlly Law/Domestic Violenc. 
(312) 431-USS 

Fedolill District Cowt A.ulstance 
For Pro Se Utfgan ts 

fedoral Court Bankruptcy Help 0<1k 
Htalth Law Pn>Jw 
!!IV/AIDS Pro/Kt 
(312) 347·8309 

Horne Ownership P,.urvat!on 
(312) 431-22~ 

Housing Pro)Kt 
Ulinols Migrant Legal AsslsL!nce 
(800) 824-4050 {toU·Iree) 

Legal Cenl<r lor lmmlgranu 
(3I2) J41-96I7 • 

Long Term Care Ombudsman lor 
Suburoon Cook and Lake Countlts 
(888) 401-8200 (toll· !reel 

Medical Debt Relit! 
(312) 431-2118 

Priv.te Anomey lovol\-ement 
Pro Se llivolt<' Clinic 
(312) 01-2101 

Public Benefits Hotline 
(888) 89H3Z7 

SSI AdvOCAcy Pro/tt1 
\'etec.uu:' Law Pro;ta 

']l!.LSC 
~'tPOI"'UI 

fot£~}1.-&t 

May 5, 2011 

Andrew Mine 
Assistant Corporation Counsel 
City of Chicago 
121 North LaSalle Street, Suite 600 
Chicago, IL 60602 

312.341.1070 Phone 
312 .34!.1041 Fax 

Re: Cabrini-Green Local AdvisOJy Council v. Chicago Housing Authority, et 
al., 96 C 6949 

Dear Andy: 

I am writing on behalf of the Cabrini~Green Local Advisory Council 
("LAC") for an update on the City's progress in acquiring and restricting use of 
land that the Cabrini-Green Consent Decree designated for replacement housing 
as part of the Near North Redevelopment Initiative. Specifically, we wish to 
know the status of the area designated on Appendices Band C to the Consent 
Decree as "Parcel# 11 ,"which encompasses the land where the Near North High 
School building currently stands. 

The Consent Decree provides, at Section ll.C., that the City will acquire 
and/or impose appropriate restrictions and requirements on specific parcels so that 
it can "maintain its commitment" to constmct at least 970 units of public and 
affordable housing. Parcel # 11 is included among the parcels that the Consent 
Decree designates for such acquisition and restrictions. 

The Consent Decree was signed in 2000. Despite frequent inquiries over 
the years, we have been unable to ascertain what steps the City ha·s taken to secure 
Parcel # 11 for replacement public housing. The City's apparent failure to impose 
the appropriate restrictions on the land has led to a couple of "close calls." For 
example, in 2008 the Chicago Public Schools almost entered into an agreement to 
use the land for a new arts high school. Recently, it appears that the school, 
which is potentially stn1ctnrally unsound, is being used for an alternative high 
school (Healy). 

_ In March 2010, representatives from the City, CHA, and LAC met with 
the now-former CEO of Chicago Public Schools, Ron Huberman, regarding 
concerns about the future plans for the Near North High School. He was aware 
of, and reiterated, the CPS's commitment to make the land that Near North High 
School occupies available for housing redevelopment. At that meeting, he 
directed his staff to prepare the necessary documents to transfer the property to 
the CHA. However, such a transfer was never made. 
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Andrew Mine 
Page2 
May 5, 2011 

To date, there ·has been no discernable movement by the City toward fulfilling its promise 
with respect to Parcel #II made in the Consent Decree over 10 years ago. Our growing concern 
about Parcel #11 is exacerbated by the impending change in the City's administration. We are 
hearing mmors about interest in using Parcel # 11 not for housing, as provided for in the Consent 
Decree, but for charter schools or other non-housing-related development. 

Accordingly, we wish to know in writing by May 11, 2011: 

1. What actions has the City taken to date to acquire and/or impose appropriate restrictions and 
.. requirements on Parcel # 11, as required by the Consent Decree; · 

2. If the City has not taken to date any such actions with respect to Parcel # 11, what actions, if 
any, does the City intend to take in the near future; 

3. Has the City engaged in any discussions that involve use of Parcel #11 for something other 
than replacement housing, and, if so, what was the substance of those discussions and are 
those discussions ongoing. 

If we do not receive satisfactory responses from you by May 11 , we will consider 
bringing to the Court's attention the concerns that the LAC has regarding the City's failure to 
comply with its obligations under the Consent Decree and seeking appropriate relief to insure 
compliance with the Consent Decree. 

Thank you in advance for your prompt attention to tllis matter. 

chard M. Wheelock 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

cc: Scott Ammarell 
I 
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